
Town Council Agenda 1 March 15, 2022 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

740 MAIN STREET 
  

EAST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT 
 

MARCH 15, 2022 
 

Executive Session 7:00 pm 
======================================================================== 
This Town Council meeting is accessible through “Microsoft Teams” 929-235-8441 

Conference ID: 622 748 664# or click on this link: Click here to join the meeting 

 
This meeting can be viewed through Comcast channel 96 and 1090 and Frontier channel 
6018 or by clicking on https://ehct.viebit.com 
 
Pledge of Allegiance                 7:30 p.m. 
 
  1.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
  2.  AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA 
 
  3.  RECOGNITIONS AND AWARDS 
 
  4.  OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON AGENDA ITEMS 
  A.  Other Elected Officials 
  B.  Other Residents 
  C.  Mayor 
  
  5.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  A.  February 28, 2022 Budget Workshop 
  B.  March 1, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes 
  C.  March 2, 2022 Budget Workshop 
  D.  March 5, 2022 Budget Workshop 
  E.  March 7, 2022 Budget Workshop 
  F.  March 9, 2022 Public Hearing 
    
 
6.  COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS 

 
  7. OLD BUSINESS 
    
  8. NEW BUSINESS 
  A.  Discontinuance of Congress Street as a Town Road 
  B.  St. Isaac Jogues Lease- Parking Area: Council Action as Committee of the Whole 
  C.  2022 AARP Community Challenge Grant  
  D.  Historic Document Preservation Grant 

E.  Setting Public Hearing Date:  Recommendation from Ordinance Committee re; 
Voting Districts  

  F.  Appointment to Boards and Commissions 
 
 
 

tel:+1%20929-235-8441,,25704167
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YzhjZGI3NGMtNjc3NC00YTM3LWEyNDctMmZjYjM0ZjQ5MThm%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2287da8af4-4bef-47df-81f6-2cd460cbb560%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22adbe2f67-5e02-469a-ae80-8d192b3a8837%22%7d
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/4C42CADg0ZT10RLcGUMMD?domain=ehct.viebit.com


Town Council Agenda 2 March 15, 2022 

 9. OPPORTUNITY FOR COUNCILLORS TO DIRECT QUESTIONS TO THE 
ADMINISTRATION 

 
10. COUNCIL ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTERS 

A.  The pending workers’ compensation claim of former Town employee, Kenneth    
      Sullivan. 

 
11. OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO SPEAK 
  A.  Other Elected Officials 
  B.  Other Residents 
  C.  Mayor 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT (next meeting: April 5, 2022) 
  



Budget Workshop 1 February 28, 2022 
 

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS/MICROSOFT “TEAMS” 
 

EAST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT 
 

FEBRUARY 28, 2022 
 

BUDGET WORKSHOP/POLICE and FIRE DEPARTMENTS 
 

                                                                             
PRESENT Chair Richard F. Kehoe, Vice Chair Donald Bell, Jr., Majority Leader Sebrina 

Wilson, Minority Leader John Morrison, Councillors Angela Parkinson, Awet 
Tsegai, Thomas Rup, Travis Simpson and Harry Amadasun, Jr.   

 
ALSO   Mayor Michael Walsh 
PRESENT Scott Sansom, Chief of Police 
  Mack Hawkins, Assistant Chief EHPD 
  Robert Davis, Deputy Chief EHPD 
  Joshua Litwin, Deputy Chief EHPD  
  Donald Olson, Deputy Chief EHPD  

Kevin Munson, Interim Fire Chief 
  Stephen Alsup, Assistant Chief   

Josh Recker, Chief Medical Officer   
Ron Krystofik, Acting Chief Training Officer   
Justin Wagner, Fire Marshal   
Michael Senerth, Superintendent of Alarms   
William Melendez, Master Mechanic 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Kehoe called the meeting to order at 6:40 p.m. The Chair stated that this meeting was  
also available to the public through the “Teams” platform.  

 
The Chair announced the exit locations in accordance with Connecticut General Statutes §29-
381, after which the Council and those in attendance joined him in the pledge of allegiance. 
 
Chair Kehoe provided an overview of the Council’s review of the Mayor’s proposed budget, 
which will include a Public Hearing on March 9, 2022 and culminate in a projected adoption of 
March 15, 2022. 
 
Mayor Walsh addressed the Council with a presentation on the crafting process on the budget in  
general as well as his recommended budget for the Police and Fire Departments. 
 
The Council reviewed the following departments’ 2022-2023 budgets: 
 
Police Department: (7:00 p.m.) 
 
Scott Sansom, Chief of Police presented an overview of the Police Department’s budget and the 
Telecommunicators’ budget and answered questions from the Councillors. 
 
 
 



Budget Workshop 2 February 28, 2022 
 

Fire Department: (8:20 p.m.) 
  
Interim Chief Munson presented an overview of the Fire Department’s budget and answered 
questions from the Councillors.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION               By John Morrison 
                 seconded by Don Bell 
                 to adjourn 9:49 p.m. 
                 Motion carried 9/0. 
 
 
                       Attest_________________________ 
                                        Jason Marshall 
                                      Town Council Clerk 























































































  

TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

 

DATE:  March 4, 2022 

TO:  Richard F. Kehoe, Chair 

FROM:  Mayor Michael P. Walsh 

RE: RESOLUTION:  Request for Council Action as Committee of the Whole – St. Isaac Jogues 

Lease – Parking Area 

 

Please consider the enclosed request from Grant Manager Paul O’Sullivan to approve the draft lease 

with the North American Martyrs Parish. The current lease expires on April 1, 2022.  

North American Martyrs Parish, formerly St. Isaac Jogues, has leased a parcel of land (0.6488 acres) on 

the corner of Community Street and Home Terrace as a paved parking lot from the Town of East 

Hartford since 1967.  The fee for this use has been $1 per year and the church maintains the lot and 

provides us with insurance protection. 

Please place this item on the Town Council agenda for the March 15, 2022 meeting. I recommend that 
the Town Council approve the lease as submitted. 
 
 
C: E. Buckheit, Development Director 

P. O’Sullivan, Grants Manager 
 



 

{W0629245.2}  

AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT, made and concluded this ____ day of March, 2022, by and between 
the TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD, a Municipal Corporation organized and existing under the 
laws of the State of Connecticut, and having its territorial limits within the County of Hartford in 
said State, and NORTH AMERICAN MARTYRS PARISH CORPORATION of East Hartford, a 
Corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Connecticut, and being located 
in said Town of East Hartford, County of Hartford and State of Connecticut; 
 

WHEREAS, the said Town of East Hartford is the owner of a certain parcel of land located 
in said Town of East Hartford, being shown as Parcel Number 183 on Page 1 of a certain map, 
plan, or drawing consisting of 8 pages entitled "Subdivision Map, East Hartford, Hartford County, 
Connecticut, Payne, Keefe & Neilan, Architects Engineers, New London, Connecticut, August 
12, 1957, Project Conn.-6024", which map or plan is on file in the Land Records of the said Town 
of East Hartford; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of One ($1.00) Dollar and other valuable 
considerations received by the said Town of East Hartford, the said Town of East Hartford, for 
itself, its successors and assigns, hereby grants to the said North American Martyrs Parish 
Corporation of East Hartford the right to use the above described premises for the parking of 
automobiles and such other uses incidental to the operation of its Church services provided, 
however, that said premises shall be available to the public for the purpose of parking of 
automobiles at all other times.  This grant of use may be transferred or assigned by the North 
American Martyrs Parish Corporation of East Hartford to Saint Isaac Jogues Ghanaian Catholic 
Parish Corporation (Assignee). Any other assignments will require the approval of the Town. 
Should Assignee cease to operate St. Isaac's Jogues church under its Agreement with North 
American Martyrs Parish Corporation, the right to assign this lease to Assignee shall immediately 
terminate. 
 

The granting of this license is in furtherance of the public use of said parcel of land and the 
parties hereto agree the granting of this license does not and is not intended to violate the restrictive 
covenants contained in a Deed, dated September 3, 1957, wherein the United States of America, 
acting through the Public Housing Administration, a constituent unit of the Housing and Home 
Finance Agency, is the Releasor and the said Town of East Hartford is the Releasee, which Deed 
is recorded in Volume 268, Page 515 of the Land Records of the said Town of East Hartford, to 
which reference may be had, and in the event it should ever be claimed the land is being used by 
virtue of the license herein granted in a manner which conflicts with the restrictive covenants 
contained in the Deed by which the licensor herein acquired title, then this Agreement shall be null 
and void and the license herein granted shall end and expire without further acts on the part of 
either party. 
 

The undersigned agrees to maintain a $500,000 per occurrence general liability insurance 
policy and to defend, indemnify and save harmless the Town of East Hartford from any claims of 
loss or liability to persons or property, injuries, damages, including reasonable attorney and 
litigation fees arising out of negligent actions or omissions by North American Martyrs Parish of 
East Hartford or its officers, agents or church invitees relative to their use/utilization of the 
described property; or its assignee, St.  Isaac Jogues Ghanaian Catholic Parish, its officers, agents 
or church invitees relative to their use/utilization of the described property. North American 
Martyrs Parish Corporation of East Hartford further undertakes to indemnify the Town of East 



 

{W0629245.2}  

Hartford for any damage to its property occurring in connection with the use of this parcel caused 
by the negligent acts or omissions of North American Martyrs Parish Corporation’s officers, agents 
or church invitees. Said general liability policy shall name and endorse onto the policy the Town 
of East Hartford, its agents, officials, volunteers and employees as additional insureds in regards 
to liabilities arising from use of the parcel. 
 
The undersigned also agrees that Assignee will obtain insurance coverages with additional insureds 
as set forth above. 
 

Normal maintenance such as sweeping or plowing of snow shall be the responsibility of 
the North American Martyrs Parish Corporation. Such responsibility may be assigned to Assignee 
but to no other party. 
 
Unless this license shall terminate by the provisions herein contained, or by operation of law, it 
shall continue to the ____ day of April, 2025. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, acting herein by their agents, duly 
authorized, have set their hands and seals on the day and year first above mentioned. 
 
In the presence of:     TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD 
 
 
       By        
Witness #1 – Signature     Michael P. Walsh, its Mayor 
        And Duly Authorized Agent 
       
Witness #1 – Printed Name 
 
 
       
Witness #2 – Signature  
 
       
Witness #2 – Printed Name 
       NORTH AMERICAN MARTYRS  

PARISH CORPORATION 
 

       By        
Witness #1 – Signature     Rev. Timothy E. Ryan, its Treasurer 
        And Duly Authorized Agent 
       
Witness #1 – Printed Name 
 
 
       
Witness #2 – Signature  
 
       
Witness #2 – Printed Name 



  

TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

 

DATE:  March 4, 2022 

TO:  Richard F. Kehoe, Chair 

FROM:  Mayor Michael P. Walsh 

RE: RESOLUTION:  Application to AARP for a 2022 Community Challenge Grant 

 

The Town of East Hartford is looking to apply to AARP for a 2022 Community Challenge Grant. The grant 

amount is to be determined, but the funds are meant to improve housing, transportation, public space 

and other community amenities.  

East Hartford plans to partner with Riverfront Recapture for improvement at the Great River Park. 

Please place this item on the Town Council agenda for the March 15, 2022 meeting. I recommend that 
the Town Council approve the resolution as submitted. 
 
 
C: E. Buckheit, Development Director 

P. O’Sullivan, Grants Manager 
 



TOWN COUNCIL RESOLUTION  
GRANT INFORMATION FORM 

 
Grant Description:    2022 AARP Community Challenge Grant 
 
 
Funder:  AARP 
 
Grant Amount: To be determined 
 
 
Frequency:     ☐ One time ☒ Annual ☐ Biennial ☐ Other             
 

First year received:   N/A   
    
Last 3 years received:   N/A   N/A   N/A 
    

Funding level by year: $ N/A $ N/A $ N/A 
 
Is a local match required?      ☐ Yes         ☒ No 
 
 
If yes, how much?                Not applicable                                

 
 
 
 

 
From which account?  Not applicable 
 
Grant purpose:           Provides small grants to fund quick-action projects that can help 

communities become more livable for people of all ages.  
 
Results achieved:       Applications will be accepted for projects to improve public spaces, 

housing, transportation and civic engagement; support diversity, equity 
and inclusion; build engagement for programs under new federal laws; and 
pursue innovative ideas that support people age 50 or older. 

 
Duration of grant:      Projects must be completed by November 30, 2022 
 
 
Status of application:   Under development 
 
 
Meeting attendee:      TBA 
 
 
Comments:                None 

















APPLICATION  
TARGETED GRANT FY 2023 
Historic Documents Preservation Program 
Connecticut Municipalities 
GP-001 (rev. 1/2022)  

STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
Connecticut State Library 
PUBLIC RECORDS ADMINISTRATOR 
231 Capitol Ave., Hartford, CT 06106 
 

This form may be completed and printed for submission at https://ctstatelibrary.org/publicrecords/hdpp  

 

Name of Municipality: 
Use full municipality name, ie 
‘Town of ___’  or ‘City of ___’  

Town of East Hartford 

Name of Municipal CEO: Michael P. Walsh Title: Mayor 

Phone with Area Code: 860-291-7201 

Email: mwalsh@easthartfordct.gov 

Name of Town Clerk: Robert J. Pasek Title: Town Clerk 

Phone with Area Code: 860-291-7235 

Email: rpasek@easthartfordct.gov Check if Designated Applicant:   

TC Mailing Address: 740 Main Street, East Hartford, CT 06108 

MCEO Address if Different:       

 

Grant Application Deadline:   Cycle 1:  April 30, 2022                     Cycle 2:  September 30, 2022                   

  

Grant Contract Period: The contract period begins after July 1, 2022 AND receipt of the fully executed 

 
contract.  Grant projects must be completed and funds expended by June 30, 2023.  

 
Maximum Grant Allowed: $5,500 Small Municipality Population less than 20,000 

 $7,500 Medium Municipality Population between 20,000 and 69,999 

 $10,500 Large Municipality Population of 70,000 or greater 

  
Amount Requested: $  7,500.00  

   
Grant Category(ies):   Inventory and Planning   Organization and Indexing  

   Program Development   Storage and Facilities 

   Preservation/Conservation See Page 6 of the Guidelines for Category descriptions. 

 

   Budget Summary Grant Funds (A) Local Funds (B) Total Funds (A+B) 

1. Consultants/Vendors 
(Total cost for all consultants and vendors) 

$ 7,500.00 $ 2.00 $ 7502.00 

2. Equipment 
(Total cost for eligible items, i.e. shelving) 

$       $       $       

3. Supplies 
(Total cost for eligible items, i.e. archival supplies) 

$       $       $       

4. Town Personnel Costs  
(Total cost for all town personnel)  

1$       2$       $       

5. Other  
     (Please specify on a separate sheet; rarely used)  

$  $  $  

6. TOTAL $       $       $ 7502.00 

                                                           
1 Base pay only for personnel hired directly by the municipality for the grant project.  Consultant/vendor costs should be listed on Line 1. 
2 Personnel taxes, benefits and any overtime must be paid by the municipality.  

https://ctstatelibrary.org/publicrecords/hdpp
mailto:rpasek@easthartfordct.gov


Narrative Page & Supporting Documents 

Answer on an attached page.  Number each question and answer.  If applying for more than one project, questions 1 
through 3 must address each project separately and be numbered separately, i.e., 1a and 1b, 2a and 2b, 3a and 3b.   

Answers should be provided in the applicant’s own words, not by referencing the vendor’s proposal. 

1. Describe the project.  State what will be done and why.  In addition, for records projects, identify the specific 
records, including date ranges.  For conservation projects, also address microfilming – see Guidelines booklet 
for instructions under Preservation/Conservation on Page 9.   

2. Provide vendor/personnel info & timeframe.  For vendors, identify the company and the timeframe for 
completing the work within the grant period.  For town personnel – see Guidelines booklet for instructions under 
Town Personnel Costs on Page 12. 

3. State what will be accomplished.  Explain how the project will impact the records, the office and/or the 
municipality. 

4. Provide a detailed budget.  If applying for only one project with one vendor – omit this question.  If applying 
for more than one project – show the detail for each line item listed on page 1 of the Application 
(Consultants/Vendors, Equipment, Supplies, and Town Personnel Costs) and the split between grant and local 
funds for each line item (if any).   

5. Attach supporting documents.  For vendors: provide a copy of the proposal or quote.  For direct purchases of 
equipment or supplies: provide a copy of the product information/pricing from the website or catalog.  

 

Designation of Town Clerk as Applicant 
This section to be completed only if the MCEO wishes to designate the Town Clerk to make the application for the grant. 

I hereby designate,                                                                             , the Town Clerk, as the agent for making     
the above application. 

      
Signature of MCEO  Date  

       
Name and Title of MCEO 

 

Certification of the Application 
This section must be signed by the applicant.   

If the Town Clerk is designated above, the Town Clerk must sign.  If the Town Clerk is not designated, the MCEO must sign.   

I hereby certify that the statements contained in this application are true and that all eligibility requirements as outlined in 
the FY 2023 Targeted Grant Guidelines have been met.   

      
Signature of Applicant (MCEO or Town Clerk if Designated) Date (must be same as or later than above date) 

Michael P. Walsh, Mayor  
 Name and Title of Applicant 

For State Library Use Only 

Grant Disposition:       Approved                 Denied 

Grant Award:           $________________________________                         Grant Number:   _________-________-_________ 

__________________________________________________                         _________________________________________ 
Signature of Public Records Administrator                Date 



  

TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

 

DATE:  March 8, 2022 

TO:  Richard F. Kehoe, Chair 

FROM:  Mayor Michael P. Walsh 

RE:  APPOINTMENTS: Boards and Commissions 

 

The following name was submitted by the Democratic Town Committee Chair to serve as a full member 
on the following commission:  

Commission on Culture and Fine Arts (5-year Term): 
 

D   Lakisher K. Hurst          118 Oxford Drive                                   12/24 

Please place these nominations on the Town Council agenda for the March 15, 2022 meeting. 

      
 
C: R. Pasek, Town Clerk 



 

March 1, 2022 

The Honorable Michael Walsh, Mayor 
Town of East Hartford  
740 Main Street  
East Hartford, CT 06108  

  Re: Boards and Commission Endorsement  

Dear Mayor Walsh:  

The District Chairs and Vice Chairs of the East Hartford Democratic Town 
Committee met virtually on February 17, 2022, to consider 
recommendations for Boards and Commissions.  

 Commission on Culture and Fine Arts: 
o Lakisher Hurst, 118 Oxford Drive, EH 06118 

 

In accordance with our guidelines, candidates’ applications were reviewed and a vote to 
endorse this appointment was held. The result of the vote was to forward the attached 
application to your office for appointment.   

          Please contact me if you have questions or need additional information.  

 Respectfully,  

 
 Moriah H. Moriarty 
 Chairman 
  


	03-15-22 Agenda.pdf
	02-28-22PoliceFireWorkshop Minutes.pdf
	CALL TO ORDER

	03-01-2022Minutes.pdf
	03-02-22 BOEIT Budget Workshop Mins Posted.PDF
	03-05-22 Workshop Mins.pdf
	6A Congress Street Notice Letters Feb 2.pdf
	6B St Isaac Memo.pdf
	6BA 2  Parking Lot Lease for St. Isaac Jogues Church Feb 2022.pdf
	6C 1 2022-03-08_Resolution_CommunityChallengeGrant.pdf
	6CA  2  Council Grants Form AARP March 2022.pdf
	6D 7 Historic Doc Pres Grant.pdf
	6DA 3 2022_HistoricPreservation_TownClerk_Application.pdf
	For State Library Use Only

	6E 2022-03-08_Memo_Appointment_DTC.pdf
	6EA 1 board and commission appointment ltr to mayor 3.1.22.pdf

